
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Strategic Environment 
Cabinet Committee

Members of the Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee of Gravesham Borough Council 
are summoned to attend a meeting to be held Virtually on Tuesday, 16 February 2021 at 7.30 pm 
when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be transacted. Details on how 
Members can attend the meeting will be sent separately. 

In response to COVID-19, the Government has legislated to permit remote attendance by Elected 
Members at formal meetings. This is conditional on other Elected Members and the public being 
able to hear those participating in the meeting. This meeting will be streamed live and can be 
watched via Gravesham Borough Council’s YouTube Channel:- 

www.youtube.com/graveshamtv 

S Walsh
Service Manager (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes (Pages 3 - 10)

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or any items in Part B in public 

5. Covid Business support & Kickstart update Presentation

6. Corporate Performance Update: Quarter Three 2020-21 (Pages 11 - 22)

7. Local Plan consultation - high level update Presentation

http://www.youtube.com/graveshamtv


8. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter or urgency 

9. Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Part B
items likely to be considered in private

None at the time of publication.

Members

Cllr Brian Sangha (Chair)
Cllr Lauren Sullivan (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Harold Craske
Brian Francis
Baljit Hayre
Leslie Hills
Leslie Hoskins
Bob Lane
Emma Morley
Alan Ridgers

Substitutes: To be notified



1

Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee 

Monday, 30 November 2020                                 7.30pm

Present:

Cllr Brian Sangha (Chair)
Cllr Lauren Sullivan (Vice-Chair) 

Cllrs: Harold Craske 
Brian Francis 
Baljit Hayre 
Leslie Hills 
Les Hoskins 
Bob Lane 
Jordan Meade  
Emma Morley 

Kevin Burbidge Director (Planning and Development) 
Simon Hookway 
Shazad Ghani 
Keith Grimley 

Assistant Director (Communities) 
Planning Manager (Policy)  
Senior Economic Development Officer

Ben Clarke Committee & Scrutiny Assistant (Minutes) 

23. Apologies 
 
An apology of absence was received from Cllr Alan Ridgers. Cllr Jordan Meade substituted. 

24. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting Monday, 28 September 2020 were signed by the Chair. 

25. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest. 

26. Planning Performance 

The Committee were presented with the third report of a regular series that were intended to 
be presented every six months to inform Members on current performance in respect of the 
Planning Service. 

Members were asked too: 

a) Discuss and comment upon the information provided; and

b)  Identify any other areas of performance they wished to see included in future reports

The Director (Planning and Development) provided a presentation to the Committee and 
outlined key points.  

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee 30.11.2020

2

The presentation could be found through the following link: 

 (Public Pack)Planning Performance Presentation Agenda Supplement for Strategic 
Environment Cabinet Committee, 30/11/2020 19:30 (gravesham.gov.uk)

The Planning Manager (Policy) gave a verbal update to Members on the most recent 
planning consultation and the Local Plan progress to date: 

 The Regulation 18 Stage 2 Consultation had been underway since the 23 October 
and it had been extended until the end of December 2020; a number of responses 
had been received from residents with the key messages being that they did not 
agree with the number of dwellings that had to be provided within Gravesham, that 
they did not want greenbelt land developed and they wanted the Council to ensure all 
brownfield sites within the urban area are delivered 

 The consultation document set out that the Council has to deliver an annual 
Government housing target of 655 houses, this is based on the Government’s current 
Standard Method. This can vary from year to year.

 The Government has consulted on revisions to the Standard Method, however the 
outcome of the consultation is awaited. Should changes to the Standard Method, 
result in changes to Gravesham’s housing targets, then this will be taken into account 
after Regulation 18 Stage 2 and will inform Regulation 19; 

 There has been a focus on delivering brownfield / previously developed sites in 
recent years, examples include the Maternity Block, Clifton Slipways, the Canal 
Basin, the Charter and several more 

 In addition, the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment identifies several 
additional brownfield sites for development within the Town Centre; Parrock Street 
Car Park, Wickes and the Civic Centre (upon relocation of current offices). However, 
all of the brownfield developments would not deliver the Governments set housing 
target which is why in keeping with the commitment made as part of the Local Plan 
Core Strategy, consideration has been given to development of land currently 
designated as green belt. 

 As part of ongoing duty-to-cooperate discussions, the Council has entered into 
discussions with neighbouring local authorities to see if any of Gravesham’s housing 
need could be met by them, these authorities have their own land supply issues and 
were not likely to be able to assist 

Following the presentation and verbal update, the Director (Planning and Development) 
fielded questions from Members and explained that: 

 Green Belt planning applications took longer to process than non-Green Belt 
applications as officers had to consider more factors during the process such as 
preserving openness, policies that restricted the scale of permissible extensions and 
sometimes lengthy negotiations with applicants on such matters

 The Council is in talks with Highways England and the Planning Inspectorate 
regarding the withdrawal of the Lower Thames Crossing Development Consent 
Order (DCO) application; some information had been received which the Council is 
reviewing. There were a few fairly significant reasons for their withdrawal such as 
their need to reconsider the construction traffic, navigational risks for boats on the 
Thames relating to a Thurrock jetty for use in moving materials and a revisit of their 
Habitats Regulations Assessment. Members were directed to look at the Planning 

Page 4

https://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/documents/b13323/Planning%20Performance%20Presentation%20Monday%2030-Nov-2020%2019.30%20Strategic%20Environment%20Cabinet%20Committe.pdf?T=9
https://democracy.gravesham.gov.uk/documents/b13323/Planning%20Performance%20Presentation%20Monday%2030-Nov-2020%2019.30%20Strategic%20Environment%20Cabinet%20Committe.pdf?T=9


Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee 30.11.2020

3

Inspectorate’s website which held further information and notices regarding the LTC 
and their intention to submit a new planning application in 2021 

 The Planning Inspectorate informed the Council through various Government 
bulletins that that there would be delays in processing planning appeals as they had 
taken a different approach, including trying to avoid site visits due to Covid-19. They 
have been doing their best to catch up on their planning appeals case load but it will 
take time to get through them.

 The Council’s website holds information regarding the pre-application service, 
timetables and costs; when pre application submissions arre processed, typically the 
officer that dealt with the pre app case would also deal with the full case.  However 
that was subject to change if the officers workload was too great at the time of 
receipt, etc. All Planning Officers consulted with each other and if an officer took on a 
different case then they would be briefed by the officer who originally took the case 
on. The Director (Planning and Development) agreed to forward Members further 
information regarding timescales and the costs of pre applications. Members noted 
that some significant cases may have had to be prioritised over resident cases 

 Any sites eventually determined for development through the Local Plan would be 
released from the Green Belt so that the planning restrictions for such land would not 
apply to those developments. To meet the current Government target, it was 
inevitable that some Green Belt would need to be released as all available brownfield 
sites in Gravesham, if fully developed, would not meet the target alone 

 Whenever a Government consultation was released the Council did its best to 
respond accordingly; the Planning Team noted that the housing numbers set by the 
Government were not far off Gravesham’s own assessment but it was recognised 
that the new algorithm had significantly increased targets in other Districts 

 The proposed interim standard method would reduce Gravesham’s housing need 
from 655 units to 405 units per annum but, due to the impact it had elsewhere in Kent 
and the country more widely, the Government agreed to review that method again 
and they will publish the results in the coming months. As a result, Gravesham can 
only work to the figure of 655 units at present in order to prepare for what is hoped 
will be the worst case scenario 

Concerns were raised by several Members of the Committee: 

 The Statement of Community Involvement had been ignored by the Council and the 
Local Plan had never been submitted to the Strategic Environment Cabinet 
Committee for discussion

 The 2300 page consultation document was too broad and complex for the public to 
understand and was only available online which neglected residents without access 
to a computer 

 Several changes had also been made to the consultation during the course of the 
pandemic which the public may have missed and a further extension of time was 
necessary to consider the documents thoroughly 

 The previous consultation in 2018 been not taken into account, it was suggested, as 
the site allocations and designs were similar to that consultation which thousands of 
Gravesham residents had rejected 

 Further briefings need to be given to both local elected Members and the Parish 
Councils informing them of the consultation and the Local Plan  

In response to those concerns, the Planning Policy Manager advised that: 

Page 5



Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee 30.11.2020

4

 The Government made changes to the Planning Practice Guidance over the course 
of the pandemic as the preferred traditional methods of distributing consultation 
documents and receiving responses could not be followed. As a result, the 
Government encouraged everyone to complete the consultation online; unfortunately 
the nature of the consultations documents meant that they were complex and not 
always easy to read 

 Over 3,000 responses were received at the Regulation 18 Stage 1 consultation and 
the Council were aware of the public concerns regarding potential Green Belt 
development, impact upon infrastructure and their preferences. Fewer responses 
were expected to be received during Stage 2 given that unlike Regulation 18 Stage 
1, a household questionnaire was not sent to every household and it is being 
undertaken online

 With regards to the changes made to the consultation document and a further 
extension of the deadline, one paragraph was amended to provide greater clarity 
however it did not add anything significant to the document and so an extension was 
not required. Moving forward, Cabinet would get the opportunity to consider all of the 
responses the Council receives as well as the various options available with a view to 
make a  determination of the most appropriate course of action 

 In 2018, the consultation exercise consulted on options for potential locations in the 
Green Belt for development and the vast majority of responses received did not 
support development on land designated as Green Belt. However the Council still 
had to take into account the Government requirements through the National Planning 
Policy Framework and could not reject any Green Belt development just because the 
residents did not like it. Instead the Council had to balance the views of residents 
against the equirements of Government. Whilst the preferred strategy of residents 
was to focus development in urban areas, it is recognised that land designated as 
Green Belt would have to be reviewed to meet the Government’s housing target. 
Other local authorities across the Country were in a similar position with their Local 
Plans and the Council did not want to submit a Local Plan to the Planning 
Inspectorate which would be rejected immediately. Therefore, residents and 
stakeholders responses would be taken into account, but the Council would need to 
ensure that Government guidance, policy, regulations and legislation is followed and 
if exceptional circumstances exist, that would justify the release of land designated 
as Green Belt for development 

The Chair added that, since the process had begun for the preparation of the consultation, it 
was reported to and approved at Cabinet as well as the timetable of the consultation which 
was included in the report submitted to Cabinet. With regards to Members not having the 
opportunity to discuss the consultation, the Chair advised that he agreed the delegated 
decision of going to consultation formally and the Chair of Overview Scrutiny could have 
called it into Overview & Scrutiny Committee for discussion, but he did not. The Council had 
used its best endeavours to keep all forty four Members involved and a robust process was 
followed; Members will continue to be apprised of the outcomes of the consultations through 
Cabinet as well as Overview Scrutiny if a call in was made. With regards to the Statement of 
Community Involvement, it was reported at Cabinet and was also called into Overview 
Scrutiny where it was discussed fully. The Chair concluded addressing Members concerns 
by informing them that the Local Plan would be progressed with the involvement of all 
Members and that would continue until it was formally adopted. 

In response to a question regarding the Council’s feelings towards the responses received 
so far, the Chair advised that there was always room for improvement with consultations and 
the onset of Covid-19 had made it especially more difficult to engage with the Community 

Page 6



Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee 30.11.2020

5

groups on a direct basis than in previous consultations. The Leader has recently met with 
the Local Parish Council Chairmen and informed them of the consultation in order to ensure 
that their Parishes were involved as much as possible. The Chair encouraged Members to 
talk to residents within their Wards and asked them to respond to the consultation directly 
online; there were forty nine question on the consultation document however they did not all 
have to be filled out; local groups/people could fill out only a small number of those 
questions that related to them and it would be very helpful. 

The Chair thanked Members for their comments and thanked the officers for their detailed 
responses. 

27. Response to Rising Unemployment 

The Assistant Director (Communities) informed the Committee of the steps that the Council 
is considering to respond to the growing unemployment position in the Borough through 
working effectively with its partners and as a major employer by expanding opportunities into 
work for young people. 

The Senior Economic Development Officer highlighted key points from the following sections 
within the report to Members: 

 Unemployment in Gravesham 
 Kickstart Scheme 
 Complimentary Actions & Initiatives 
 Potential Work Opportunities for Young People within the Council 

The Chair noted that the Council had become increasingly closer with the local business 
community over the last few years and had real influence in creating effective partnerships 
between the Council and local organisations. 

The Assistant Director (Communities) and the Senior Economic Development Officer fielded 
questions from the Committee and explained that: 

 The Kickstart Scheme was available to employers to fund the creation of new 6-
month job placements for young people (aged 16-24-years-old) who were currently 
on universal credit and at risk of long-term unemployment Funding for the Kickstart 
Scheme was based on the number of placements that could be provided by the 
Council/businesses; a minimum of thirty placements was required and so local 
businesses were also being encouraged to put up further placements for young 
people in order to expand the amount of available spaces. The Council hoped to 
create placements both in the Council and local businesses and messages would be 
distributed with the help of the DWP and North Kent College 

 Gravesham had reported a higher level of NEET’s and individuals were at higher risk 
of being left behind due to Covid-19; the Senior Economic Development Officer was 
working with KCC and other partners on the issue. An update will be brought to the 
Committee once the work was further underway 

 The virtual youth hubs were still in the process of being created; an update will be 
brought to the Committee in the future 

 Gravesham had always had comparatively higher youth unemployment than the rest 
of Kent but the figures were more on par with the national average; further work will 
be undertaken by the Council to understand why youth unemployment had risen so 

Page 7



Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee 30.11.2020

6

sharply in the Borough, but may relate to the level of job vacancies within the 
Borough. 

 Members could assist by signposting people to the reverent services and informing 
residents in their own wards of the opportunities that were available to them, 
especially young people and the Kickstart Scheme. The team will look into ways that 
Councillors could get more involved and help distribute information to their ward 
residents.  

 The Senior Economic Development Officer advised Members that he would circulate 
information regarding opportunities for mentoring via the Groundwork Trust outside 
the meeting 

 Over many years, the Council hosted an annual careers fair which was an 
opportunity for local young people to engage with local employers  and learn about 
possible career paths etc.  Sectoral career/job fairs may be the way forward. 

 The Senior Economic Development Officer advised Members that he would circulate 
information regarding the Federation of Small Business partners as they were keen 
to have local Councillors get involved 

 The Assistant Director (Communities) did not have the information to hand on the two 
vacant apprenticeship posts but he assured the Committee that the aim would be to 
fill those posts It was reported that cohorts of apprenticeships varied from year to 
year and that many found a permanent role within the Council workforce upon 
completion of their apprenticeships; a review is being undertaken to see if the 
apprenticeship programme can be improved further and more detail can  included 
within a future report regarding the apprenticeship programme 

 There was a public document which split youth unemployment figures between the 
different wards in Gravesham; the Assistant Director (Communities) agreed to 
circulate it to Members 

The Chair thanked the Assistant Director (Communities) and the Senior Economic 
Development Officer for their detailed run through of the report; the Chair also thanked the 
Members for their suggestions and was pleased that discussions were ongoing to review 
how Members could contribute at ward level. 

28. Q2 2020-21 Performance Report 

The Committee were presented with an update against the Performance Management 
Framework, as introduced within the Council’s Corporate Plan, for Quarter Two 2020-21 
(July to September 2020).

The Chair advised that the Policy Commitments that pertained to Planning had already been 
discussed thoroughly this evening during the Planning Performance item and encouraged 
discussion on any other corporate data which hadn’t been raised so far.  

The Assistant Director (Communities) guided Members through the report and highlighted 
key points from the Policy Commitments that pertained to Communities. 

In response to a question regarding the increasing vacancy rate within the Town Centre and 
the Council’s policy of allowing retail units to convert to residential, the Director (Planning 
and Development) advised that the planning policy set out what was allowed in the Town 
and they had taken a fairly flexible approach on a case by case basis to ensure businesses 
could trade and residential units could be converted where appropriate. Officers were 
reviewing employment spaces more broadly as well as leisure type events and many of the 
development proposals were moving ahead despite the setback caused by Coivd-19. 

Page 8



Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee 30.11.2020

7

 In response to a question regarding the decline in Town Centre footfall since the onset of 
Covid-19, the Assistant Director (Communities) advised that the footfall had recovered to 
80% compared to the previous year which was better when compared to other centres, 
especially city centres. In future reports, comparisons with national/regional figures can be 
included. The Assistant Director (Communities) added that future projections of footfall within 
the  new tier system that was coming into effect from 02 December 2020 was difficult to 
predict;  it could increase due to a surge in Christmas shopping but the team will monitor all 
progress and report it back to the next Committee meeting. 

The Chair thanked the officers for their responses and Members for their engagement during 
the course of the meeting. 

               Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 21:23pm. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Strategic Environment Committee

Date: 16 February 2021

Reporting officer: Wendy Lane - Assistant Director (Planning) 
Simon Hookway - Assistant Director (Communities)

Subject: Corporate Performance Update: Quarter Three 2020-21 

Purpose and summary of report: 
To present Members of the Strategic Environment Committee with an update against the 
Performance Management Framework, as introduced within the council’s Corporate Plan, for 
Quarter Three 2020-21 (October to December 2020). 

Recommendations:
1. This report is for information purposes only.

1. Introduction

1.1 In October 2019 the council formally adopted its Corporate Plan for 2019-23. The 
plan sets out the council’s ambition for the borough, complete with a suite of 
corporate objectives and supporting policy commitments that will shape the 
council’s activities over the four year period.  

1.2 In order to evaluate if the council is effectively achieving against its stated policy 
commitments, and is ultimately delivering consistently high quality services, the 
council need to have a sound performance management process in place. 
Developed by senior council officers and Cabinet portfolio holders, the council’s 
Corporate Plan presents a Performance Management Framework (PMF) that 
forms the basis of reporting corporate performance to council Members and 
residents. 

Page 11 Agenda Item 6



2

2. Performance management: process

2.1 The effective management of the council relies upon good quality and timely 
performance information on which to base informed executive decisions.  

2.2 Appendix Two to this report provides Members of the Strategic Environment 
Committee with a statistical overview of the council’s performance against the 
Corporate Plan for Quarter Three 2020-21, covering the period October to 
December 2020. 

2.3 Information on performance over the period is presented separately in tabular and 
graphical form for all indicators. Where any data is not presented, this will relate 
either to those indicators reported on an annual basis or, alternatively, where data 
has not been submitted in time for the presentation of the report. Any outturns 
where data has been unable to be reported will be presented within the next 
available reporting cycle.  

3. BACKGROUND PAPERS

 Gravesham Borough Council: Corporate Plan 2019-23. 

 Gravesham Borough Council: Performance Management Framework 
2019-23. 

Anyone wishing to inspect background papers should, in the first place, be directed to 
Committee & Electoral Services who will make the necessary arrangements.

Page 12



IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1
     

Legal The council’s Corporate Plan is an integral part of the authority’s policy framework 
as defined by the Constitution. The Plan ensures the council has in place an 
effective framework to deliver its responsibilities and ensure better results for 
vulnerable local residents, with the assistance of relevant partner agencies. 

Finance and Value 
for Money 

There are no significant costs associated with the monitoring of the council’s 
Corporate Plan from which council activities should be based and which therefore 
should be accounted for as part of on-going financial planning processes.

Risk Assessment Implementation of a performance management framework allows the council to 
evidence how successful it is in achieving against its stated objectives and provides 
residents accountability in how successfully it is administering its resources.

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process. 

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data? 
A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links.

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice?
     

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk.
     

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
N/A

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
N/A

Equality Impact 
Assessment

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate Plan The council’s adopted Corporate Plan sets the strategic ambition and objectives for 
the authority over the 2019-23 period. This report provides Cabinet with a quarterly 
assessment of how the council is delivering against its objectives through its 
performance management framework.

Climate Change Climate change as a strategic theme underpins the projects, initatives and work 
involved in the delivery of the council's Corporate Plan. As a core policy 
commitment of the council, efforts in this area are represented within corporate 
objective #1: People.

Crime and Disorder Community safety is an integral theme of the Corporate Plan and work by the 
council in this area, alongside its key partners, will go towards delivering corporate 
objective #1: People.

Page 13

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


4

Digital and website 
implications

In terms of the council's performance management framework, digital implications 
are represented and assessed through the outturns relating to  'PI 51: online self-
help forms'.

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults

The council's work in safeguarding children and vulnerable adults helps contribute 
towards delivering corporate objectives #1: People and #2: Place.

Page 14



Gravesham Borough Council - Corporate Plan 2019-23 00Delivering a Gravesham to be proud of

S T R A T E G I C  E N V I R O N M E N T
P O R T F O L I O

Performance   report 
Q  3  :  2  0  2  0  -  2  1

Delivering a Gravesham to be proud of

P
age 15



P I  14 Total number of net additional homes delivered 

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

21 24 53 14 45 71 17

P I  15 Gross number of affordable homes delivered

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

64

Additional homes update - Shazad Ghani

Affordable Housing update  - Sharon Donald 

In November 2020, the Government published its national data set on net additions to dwelling stock. 

For 2019-2020, the Borough’s net additions were 164 dwellings

Annual indicatorAnnual indicator

#1 PEOPLE 
a proud community; where residents can call a safe, clean and 

attractive borough their home.

P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

 1. Deliver an ambitious and diverse programme of building: increase the supply of high quality 

market and affordable housing.

O U T T U R N 

Despite the challenges posed by the pandemic, work continued on the Council’s new build schemes 

with progress being made on all three sites at Whitehill Road, St Patrick’s Gardens and Valley Drive.

The Council was also successful in securing planning permission for a further six new homes on 

redundant land at Armoury Drive and has also recently received approval to enter into contract for the 

delivery of 6 bungalows at Constable Road. Together, these schemes will provide 115 new Council 

homes for rent for households from the housing register. 

During Q3 our Registered Provider partners delivered 51 new homes being a mix of Shared 

Ownership and Affordable Rent. The new homes were delivered across 3 schemes currently under 

construction across the borough at Waterman’s Park, Cable Wharf and Springhead Park. The new 

homes have been delivered by Town and Country Housing, Orbit, Moat and Sage. 

Shared Ownership: 

3 x 1 bed apartment

16 x 2 bed apartment

4 x 2 bed house

15 x 3 bed house

4 x 4 bed house

Affordable Rent:

6 x 2 bed house 

3 x 3 bed house 

O U T T U R N 

0

30

60

90

Q1
2019 - 20

Q2
2019 - 20

Q3
2019 - 20

Q4
2019 - 20

Q1
2020 - 21

Q2
2020 - 21

Q3
2020 - 21

0

50

100

150

Q4
2019 - 20

P
age 16



P I  28 % rate of vacant town centre retail properties

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

8.9% 8.7% 8.7% 9.0% 11.2% 11.1% 12.3%

P I  29 Average weekly Town Centre footfall

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

117,111 115,228 106,208 94,276 40,386 91,077 72,701

O U T T U R N 

a dynamic borough; defined by a vibrant and productive local economy taking 
advantage of growth in the area, supported by its strong and active community.

The Charter

Following re-consultation in late 2020, the planning application for “Erection of 242no. residential 

units for Build to Rent (C3 Use Class), within three blocks ranging from 3 to 10 storeys, together with 

multi-storey car park as well as access, pedestrian links, landscaping, highway and other associated 

works” was approved at Planning Committees in July and December 2020 and the planning 

permission issued on 21 December 2020.

Town Centre footfall had recovered to 80% of the footfall for the similar period the year before, 

however a further lockdown announced in November placed additional restrictions on businesses, 

with the closure of non-essential retail.  As a consequence, footfall this quarter reduced to 68% of the 

previous year and a decline of 20% on Q2.  The run-up to Christmas is a key trading time for retail as 

a consequence the impact on the retail in the Town will have been acutely felt.

Nationally, pressure on the retail sector has seen many High Street ‘names’ facing severe difficulties.  

Amongst these, the most significant for Gravesend Town Centre was the announcement by 

Debenhams in December 2020 that they had started the liquidation process after JD Sports pulled 

out of rescue talks.  This will lead to the closure of the Gravesend store, with subsequent job losses 

and a large vacant store on New Road.

The Town Centre vacancy rate was 12.3% at the end of Q3, rising due to the impact of the 

pandemic, with closures and fewer new openings within the Town Centre.

P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

1. Enhance the vibrancy of the Gravesham economy: deliver a programme of strategic 

regeneration schemes, supported by an effective Town Centre team. 

O U T T U R N 

#2 PLACE 

0%

5%

10%

15%

Q1
2019 - 20

Q2
2019 - 20

Q3
2019 - 20

Q4
2019 - 20

Q1
2020 - 21

Q2
2020 - 21

Q3
2020 - 21

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

Q1
2019 - 20

Q2
2019 - 20

Q3
2019 - 20

Q4
2019 - 20

Q1
2020 - 21

Q2
2020 - 21

Q3
2020 - 21

P
age 17



P I  30 Total rateable value of all commercial properties    

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

£64,341,435 £64,368,585 £64,420,185 £64,420,185 £64,801,072 £64,759,342 £64,636,262

P I  31 Total number of vacant commercial properties 

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

N/A 247 240 240 217 207 194

#2 PLACE P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

2. Raise Gravesham’s economic profile: develop business and transport infrastructure and 

improve local land usage through a diversified commercial premises portfolio.

a dynamic borough; defined by a vibrant and productive local economy taking 
advantage of growth in the area, supported by its strong and active community.

With a further lockdown announced by the Government in November and an extension of restrictions 

as the Borough moved into Tier 3 and then Tier 4, the Government announced a series of grant 

support schemes for businesses in Q3.  The main grants were Local Restrictions Support Grant 

'Closed' (LRSG) and Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG).  LRSG was a grant to ‘closed’ businesses 

made to those on the business rates listing; ARG a discretionary grant scheme for businesses not 

paying business rates.  The Council put in place a policy to administer ARG and this provided parity 

with the grants available under LRSG for eligible businesses.  

Administering a complex set of grants against rapidly changing circumstances and restrictions in Q3, 

took a considerable amount of officer time across the Council to ensure that businesses received 

funding as quickly as possible.  By the end of Q3, 383 payments had been made under LRSG, 

totalling £594,520, the majority of these to small businesses; 82 payments had been made under 

ARG, totalling £100,690.  Payments will increase significantly under these schemes in Q4. 

Covid-19 restrictions and changes during Q3 necessitated additional communication to businesses 

and checks on closures, leading to additional guidance and, in some cases, enforcement action 

being taken.

Additional employment space in the Borough is being brought forward with commencement made on 

the development of 6 no. new industrial, warehouse and trade counter units at Coldharbour Road.  

Discussions are taking place with the Ebbsfleet Development Corporation on a scheme for a series 

of new business units at Northfleet Embankment East, within the North Kent Enterprise Zone.  Small 

business units have been approved at Clifton Slipways in the Town Centre and discussions are 

underway on additional space within St George’s Phase 2. 

O U T T U R N 

O U T T U R N 

£64,000,000

£64,500,000

£65,000,000

£65,500,000

Q1
2019 - 20

Q2
2019 - 20

Q3
2019 - 20

Q4
2019 - 20

Q1
2020 - 21

Q2
2020 - 21

Q3
2020 - 21

100

200

300

400

Q2
2019 - 20

Q3
2019 - 20

Q4
2019 - 20

Q1
2020 - 21

Q2
2020 - 21

Q3
2020 - 21

P
age 18



P I  32 % net gain in new businesses  

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

2.4%

London Resort

The Development Consent Order was submitted on 31 December 2020. 

Regular signposting to local and national sources of financial and other support for businesses has 

been undertaken through the Gravesham Business Network.  The Council has continued to support 

the Kent & Medway Growth Hub.

Business energies focused on the immediate urgency of the Covid-19 pandemic perhaps 

overshadowed communication and preparations being made for EU transition in Q3.  A deal was 

finalised at the end of Q3.  Council officers participated in Kent Resilience Forum (KRF) activity to 

maintain movement of vehicles within the County given the disruption at the Channel Crossing 

arising from closure of the French border in Q3.

The Kent and Medway Growth Hub ran a Brexit Transition conference which the Senior Economic 

Development Officer advertised through social media channels to local businesses.  This was in 

addition to emailing details of Cabinet Office-run webinars dedicated to local business advisors 

imparting key transition messages and toolkits to identified local exporters.

Economic development have encouragingly dealt with a steady trickle of start-up enquiries during the 

quarter, perhaps as individuals are exploring alternative routes into employment.

Economic development views have been made in respect of proposals for expansion of Meopham 

Valley Vineyard and Nuralite Business Park.

 

Training workshops on business planning, were delivered to market traders who opted to join a 

GoTrade sponsored online session delivered at the end of the year.

O U T T U R N 

Annual indicator Annual indicator 

#2 PLACE P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

3. Promote a borough ‘open for business’: with a focus on retaining existing businesses and 

encouraging new start-ups, increase the level and range of business investment to drive economic 

growth. 

a dynamic borough; defined by a vibrant and productive local economy taking 
advantage of growth in the area, supported by its strong and active community.

0%

2%

4%

6%

Q4
2019 - 20

P
age 19



P I  33 % rate of resident unemployment 

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

3.1% 3.3% 3.4% 3.5% 7.4% 7.6% 7.3%

P I  34 % rate of youth unemployment

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

5.2% 5.5% 5.6% 5.8% 11.9% 13.0% 12.5%

#2 PLACE P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

4. Improve economic conditions: alongside key partner agencies, develop a package of measures 

that support local enterprises and deliver a workforce with the skills needed by modern business. 

a dynamic borough; defined by a vibrant and productive local economy taking 
advantage of growth in the area, supported by its strong and active community.

Continued participation in discussions with other economic partners across the County in relation to 

the work of the Kent Employment Task Force informing the wider response to the pandemic and 

economic recovery and local actions.

The Council’s application for Kickstart Scheme placements was accepted by the Department of Work 

and Pensions in Q3 and steps will be taken with managers across the Council’s service areas to 

complete job descriptions towards fulfilling placements in 2021.

The Council’s Senior Economic Development Officer participated in the establishment of an 

Employment and Skills Task Force for London Resort, along similar lines to that for the Lower 

Thames Crossing.

O U T T U R N 

O U T T U R N 

0.0%

4.0%

8.0%

12.0%

Q1
2019 - 20

Q2
2019 - 20

Q3
2019 - 20

Q4
2019 - 20

Q1
2020 - 21

Q2
2020 - 21

Q3
2020 - 21

4%

8%

12%

16%

Q1
2019 - 20

Q2
2019 - 20

Q3
2019 - 20

Q4
2019 - 20

Q1
2020 - 21

Q2
2020 - 21

Q3
2020 - 21

P
age 20



P I  35 % of ‘Major’ planning applications processed on time 

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

75% 100% 100% 83% 100% 100% 100%

P I   36 % of ‘Non-Major’ planning applications processed on time

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

61% 77% 77% 86% 95% 100% 97%

O U T T U R N 

In Q3:

• Major applications – 100% (3 applications decided, 3 in time)

• Minor and other applications – 96.6% (175 applications decided, 169 in time)

On 23rd October the Council commenced consultation on the emerging Regulation 18 Stage 2 Local 

Plan documents from Friday 23rd October 2020 to 31st December 2020. 

People were invited to comment on:

• Part 1: Local Plan Core Strategy Partial Review and Site Allocations 

• Part 2: Draft Development Management Policies Document

• Supporting documents

On 29 October 2020, the Council submitted its response to MHCLG’s Planning White Paper 

consultation “Planning for the Future”.

On Wednesday 16 December the government published its response to the local housing need 

proposals in the consultation on changes to the current planning system. The requirement for 

Gravesham is as set out in the Regulation 18 stage 2 consultation i.e. MHCLG will continue to use 

the 2014-based household projections

#2 PLACE P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

5. Positively promote sustainable development: deliver a pro-active development management 

service, underpinned by a sound Local Plan that protects and enhances our historic natural and built 

environment. 

a dynamic borough; defined by a vibrant and productive local economy taking 
advantage of growth in the area, supported by its strong and active community.

O U T T U R N 

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q1
2019 - 20

Q2
2019 - 20

Q3
2019 - 20

Q4
2019 - 20

Q1
2020 - 21

Q2
2020 - 21

Q3
2020 - 21

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q1
2019 - 20

Q2
2019 - 20

Q3
2019 - 20

Q4
2019 - 20

Q1
2020 - 21

Q2
2020 - 21

Q3
2020 - 21

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Corporate Performance Update: Quarter Three 2020-21
	2. Strategic Environment Committee - Q3 2020-21 - Appendix 1




